1

Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital Foundation

2018 Annual Report

2018 Annual Report

2

Contact Information
RBWH Foundation
Block 20
Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital
Herston QLD 4006
Phone: 07 3646 7588
Fax: 07 3646 1768
Email: info@rbwhfoundation.com.au
Web: www.rbwhfoundation.com.au
Mail: PO Box 94
Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital
QLD 4029
ISSN: 2203-6954 print
ISSN: 2203-6962 online
This Annual Report is available to download from RBWH Foundation’s website,
www.rbwhfoundation.com.au under ‘Publications’ or hard copies are available by calling
07 3646 7588.

Interpreter Service
RBWH Foundation is committed to providing accessible services to Queenslanders from all
culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds. If you have difficulty in understanding the Annual
Report, you can contact us on 07 3646 7588 and we will arrange an interpreter to effectively
communicate the report to you.

Copyright Notice
© (RBWH Foundation) 2018

2018 Annual Report

3

Table of Contents
Page
Glossary
1. Background
2. Regulatory Framework
3. Operating Environment
4. Current Year Strategic Goals
5. Achievement of Current Year Strategic Goals
6. Future Strategic Goals
7. Financial Performance
8. Historical Performance
9. Key Achievements
10. Success Principles
11. Governance and Internal Control
12. Mission Support
13. Funding of Mission
14. External Scrutiny
15. Machinery of Government Changes
16. Review of Proposed Forward Operations
17. Strategic workplace planning and performance
18. Information Systems and Record Keeping
19. Open Data – Consultancies, Overseas Travel and Government
Bodies

4
5
6
6
7
7
8
10
13
15
15
16
30
32
32
33
33
33
33
34

Attachments
One:
Two:
Three:
Four:
Five:

Compliance Letter
Charter for Growth 2017-2018 – 2022-2023
Charter for Growth Project 2022-2023
Compliance Checklist
Audited 2018 Annual Financial Statements

2018 Annual Report

35
36
37
38
40

4

Glossary
AASBs

Australian Accounting Standards, as issued by Australian Accounting
Standards Board.

Active donor database

Anyone who has made a donation, purchased merchandise or event
tickets in the previous two years (1/7/2017 – 30/6/2018).

AFRC

Audit, Finance and Risk Committee, a sub-committee of the
Foundation Board.

Charter for Growth

The Foundation’s Strategic Plan.

IPTV

Internet Protocol Television.

KPI

Specific metric for achievement of target.

Quaternary Care

An extension of tertiary care in reference to medicine of advanced
levels which are highly specialised and not widely accessed.
Experimental medicine and some types of uncommon diagnostic or
surgical procedures are considered quaternary care.

RBWH

Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital.

Tertiary Hospital

Major hospital that usually has a full complement of services including
paediatrics, obstetrics, general medicine, gynaecology, various
branches of surgery and psychiatry.

The Foundation

Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital Foundation.

Tied/Directed Income

Income received by the Foundation which has specific instructions
from the donor as to how it is to be disbursed (in alignment with the
Foundation’s mission).

Untied/Undirected
Income

Income received by the Foundation which has no specific restrictions
attached as to how it is to be disbursed (provided it is done in
accordance with the Foundation’s mission).
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1. Background
ROYAL BRISBANE AND WOMEN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
Better Ways to Better Health
The purpose of Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital Foundation (the Foundation) is to undertake
initiatives which enable the development and delivery of Better Ways to Better Health for the
community. Tangible outcomes from the Foundation’s purpose are ultimately demonstrated by
improvements in patient care at Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital (RBWH).
The Foundation achieves its purpose through many means, including:







funding of centres of excellence that undertake clinical research
grants to young first-time researchers, who are embarking on their career as a clinician and
potential clinical researcher
funding of equipment for research
facilitating clinical trials
training of professionals
promoting health education in the community.

Being a quaternary and tertiary referral teaching hospital located in Metro North Hospital and Health
Service, RBWH fulfils a significant role in the Queensland community, and beyond. Apart from
providing high quality medical care, it fulfils a significant teaching and research role with links to
Queensland’s major tertiary institutions.
The core to the Foundation’s success is its standing with the community and its supporters. The
generosity of donors to the Foundation, whether it be time, funds or other forms of contribution,
make it possible for the Foundation to deliver on its purpose to the community.

1.1

The Foundation’s primary objective through to 2022-2023

Central to the Foundation’s strategic plan through to 2022-2023 is its primary objective of increasing
its distribution to mission each year going forward, with a goal of $6.6 million being distributed each
year by 2022-2023.
Achieving the primary objective is dependent upon:





continuing to develop the brand equity of the Foundation in the marketplace
increasing the performance of fundraising each year
developing the corpus of the Foundation (so that it can support larger, longer term research
projects with financial security)
managing the Foundation as a commercial enterprise, with a balanced approach towards
governance, risk management and commercial opportunities.

The Foundation supports the Queensland Government’s objectives for the community, particularly,
the delivery of quality front line services via the strengthening of the public health system.
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2. Regulatory Framework
The Foundation was established by Order in Council in 2003 following the merger of Royal
Women’s Hospital Foundation and Royal Brisbane Hospital Foundation. It is a statutory body within
the meaning given in the Financial Accountability Act (Qld) 2009.
The Foundation’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards (as issued by AASB), the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 of the
Financial Accountability Act (Qld) 2009 and the Australian Charities and Not-for profits Commission
Act 2012 and Regulation 2013.

3. Operating Environment
3.1

Statutory obligations – review and progress

The Foundation’s primary statutory obligations are detailed in Hospital Foundations Act 1982
(replaced by Hospital Foundations Act 2018 on 1 July 2018). The objective of the Foundation is to
raise money for RBWH to provide better treatment methods and improve patient outcomes.
Compliance with this is reviewed annually as part of the Foundation’s strategic review process.
From this, a strategic plan is updated, and an operational plan is produced which details progress to
date and operationalises the strategic goals for the current year.

3.2

Operational overview

The Foundation’s operational plan details priority areas of fundraising and marketing, corporate
services and commercial services. It establishes goals and details functions for each team and
each team member.

3.3

Strategic risks, opportunities, challenges and potential impacts

The Foundation’s thinking has been influenced by an earlier strategic management review which
revealed the following critical success factors after juxtaposing a Porter’s five forces analysis and a
PESTEL analysis:


Supplier power (donor) is the greatest threat to the Foundation’s future activities. As
suppliers’ ability to continue support is irrevocably tied to the economic imperatives of the
time, so too will the Foundation be affected by the ebbs and flows of supplier whims and
economic circumstances.



As the threat of substitutes (other charitable activities at RBWH) remains constant in an ever
changing political, social and legal environment, ensuring good working relationships and
trust with the Hospital will be critical in mitigating this.



Barriers of entry (of other charitable enterprises) are somewhat tied to supplier power in that
if the suppliers continue to trust and support the Foundation, this will reduce any threat
posed by new sector incumbents. Maintaining relevancy and value to suppliers is a critical
success factor.

This understanding, together with recent analysis, has been used to influence the Foundation’s
future opportunities and strategic goals (see following).
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4. Current Year Strategic Goals
For the year ended 30 June 2018, the key strategic goals of the Foundation (refer Attachment Two)
were to:
1. Become known throughout Queensland as the fundraising body which enhances patient care
at RBWH.
2. Grow the Foundation’s ability to deliver distributions to its mission through excellence in
fundraising practice.
3. Seek opportunities for alliances with RBWH and Metro North Hospital and Health Service,
donors and stakeholders, which drives expansion of commercial opportunities and revenue
growth.
4. Apply a sound financial model which ensures the Foundation meets its mission.
5. Create a culture where everyone is passionate about the Foundation’s mission – Better
Ways to Better Health.

5. Achievement of Current Year Strategic Goals
The Foundation measures and reports to the Board, and Audit, Finance and Risk Committee
(AFRC), progress to plan via bimonthly strategic mapping which includes the following tracking of
progress.

5.1








5.2





Progress to strategy 2022-2023
Increase in fundraising.
Increase in commercial activities.
Increase in financial activities.
Increase in distributions.
Balance sheet equity.
Increase in donor database.
Employee satisfaction.

Foundation strategy map perspectives
Stakeholders.
Internal Processes.
Learning and Growth.
Finance.

Taking each key strategic goal in turn, the following has been achieved:
1. The Foundation is currently one of the leading hospital foundations in Queensland due to its
continuing success, as demonstrated by its financial performance and distribution to mission.
2. Substantial income has again been achieved in 2018, together with continually increasing
funds provided for mission support.
3. The Foundation is continuing to develop the depth of its support of the RBWH Executive and
operations at the Hospital. The Foundation’s IPTV Project continues to perform above
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expectations. This is the only IPTV paid installation in Australia and, with 900 televisions
installed and 61 kilometers of cabling laid, it continues to be a significant achievement.
4. The corpus of the Foundation has improved again in 2018, as a direct result of the strong
financial performance. This will continue to better position the Foundation to achieve the
goals set for 2022-2023 with regards to distributions to mission.
5. Flexible working arrangements and a staff incentive program have been maintained, as well
as regular appreciation sessions conducted with full time and volunteer team members.
The availability of a strong balance sheet enabled the Foundation to safely invest in new
Fundraising initiatives, which will drive future revenue growth. This in turn enabled the
Foundation to increase its mission support.

6. Future Strategic Goals
During the year, the Foundation undertook strategic and fundraising reviews. These were designed
to take a fresh look at where the Foundation is at, where it should be by 2022-2023 and how to get
there.
Key objectives set by the strategic review to be achieved by 2022-2023 are to:



distribute $6.6 million to mission annually
establish a corpus of $61 million to fund larger and longer-term research initiatives.

The following activities (identified in the fundraising review) will enable the Foundation to increase
fundraising revenue over the foreseeable future:


Greater Board engagement to assist with Major Giving and Corporate lead generation. This
will enable us to extend our reach beyond current contacts. Warm introductions to a major
giver or corporate have a high likelihood of developing further than cold calls.



External resource engaged to undertake market research to inform brand development and
donor profiling/targeting. The research will give us greater insights into people’s connections
to the hospital, philanthropic decision making and their motivations and barriers for giving to
the Foundation. This in turn will provide us with real ‘evidence’ to develop our brand, value
proposition and key messaging so that we can position and market the Foundation in a more
compelling way to inspire increased support from existing donors, lapsed donors, corporates,
hospital staff, Royal Mums and non-donors. The research will also result in tangible lead
generations and the development of a series of ‘nudges’ for future communications. The
research will also set and measure our brand appreciation goals moving forward.



External resource engaged to undertake data insights project. This will enable us to better
understand our current data – who they are, what they do, how often and why they give. By
doing this, we’ll be able to identify and define a number of key segments that we can tailor
our asks/offerings to in order to drive fundraising dollars. The insights will also identify
existing supporters on our database who would be most appropriate to target for regular
giving, major gifts and other offerings.



External resource engaged to assist with development of Donor Journey Mapping and
enhanced communications. This will enable us to create ‘Donor Personas’ for different
segments and where the appropriate ‘nudges’ can be used to achieve the greatest result. It
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will clarify the existing journeys we take our supporters on and help us identify steps to be
added/adapted in order to increase ‘share of wallet’ from donors. The objective is to define
supporter journeys that will convert Royal Mums to regular givers, Alumni members to
bequestors, patients to first cash gift, and event attendees to major donors.


External resource engaged to assist with targeted direct mail appeals in order to create a
more compelling ask that will generate increased donations.



Investment in data acquisition and donor recruitment so that we can increase our supporter
base and increase donations.



External resource engaged to assist with development of Regular Giving Proposition and
testing. By getting this proposition right and taking it to market via the most effective
channels, we can increase predictable, sustainable income for the future.



A focus on Major Gifts as we have not had a ‘leadership’ position in this portfolio and greater
focus is needed to identify, analyse and formulate the best offerings to engage this highly
valuable segment.



Cancel events that are deemed high effort/low reward. So, that the team can focus on
maximising returns from appropriate events, including developing strategies and using
journey mapping to convert event attendees in to major givers.



Continue to work on patient ‘opt out’ arrangements and commence educating hospital
departments on donor referral. Patients are our greatest opportunity with the highest
propensity to donate given their experience and appreciation of the hospital.



Development of ‘innovation budget’ – agreement to accept cost of risk may result in lower
returns in the first two to three years. In year one, the innovation budget will primarily fund
donor acquisition and product/offering development and testing. In year two, the focus will
be on the development of a major event/campaign that will generate income in excess of $1
million (need to aim high) and further product/offering development and testing.



Commence reviewing database/CRM needs with prospect of introducing in year two. This
will enable us to develop a more proactive, journey based fundraising program that will
automate communications, provide greater analysis per campaign and donor segment, and
ultimately result in increased retention and extension of donors.

Accordingly, the Foundation’s amended future strategic goals are to:
1. Become known throughout Queensland as the fundraising body which enhances patient care
at RBWH.
2. Grow the Foundation’s ability to deliver distributions to its mission through excellence in
fundraising practice.
3. Seek opportunities for alliances with RBWH and Metro North Hospital and Health Service,
donors and stakeholders, which drives expansion of commercial opportunities and revenue
growth.
4. Apply a sound financial model which ensures the Foundation meets its mission.
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5. Create a culture where everyone is passionate about the Foundation’s mission – Better
Ways to Better Health.
The Foundation’s Charter for Growth for ‘2018-2019’ – ‘2022-2023’ is found in Attachment Three.
The Foundation will also continue to maintain its sound financial position (which delivers stability in
delivering year-on-year distributions to mission), via a continued focus on untied income-producing
activities or appropriate administration fees, equity build and critical examination of all expenses and
distributions. It is anticipated the next five years will witness growth by stable commercial and
fundraising income. In line with this success, the Foundation will continue to increase its
financial and other support for the hospital to assist it with a variety of initiatives. As the
Foundation continues its search for excellence, built on a foundation of business stability, it will play
its part in the creation of a successful government.

7. Financial Performance
7.1

Receipts and disbursements

The following summarises the historical performance of the Foundation as extracted from the
audited financial statements:
Year
$ million
Income
Expenses
Distributions
Net Surplus

2009
$m
3.4
1.3
1.8
0.3

2010
$m
5.0
1.4
1.7
1.9

2011
$m
5.3
2.0
1.4
1.9

2012
$m
6.5
2.2
1.2
3.1

2013
$m
9.2
2.6
2.1
4.5

2014
$m
13.1
2.8
4.4
5.9

2015
$m
12.5
3.0
5.0
4.5

2016
$m
15.7
3.6
4.2
7.9

2017
$m
14.1
4.2
6.2
3.7

2018
$m
16.0
4.3
6.8
4.9

Expenses %
Distributions %
Net Surplus %

37%
53%
11%

28%
34%
38%

39%
27%
34%

35%
18%
47%

28%
23%
50%

22%
33%
45%

24%
40%
36%

23%
27%
50%

30%
44%
26%

27%
42%
31%

2015

2016

2017

2018

Income
18,000,000
16,000,000
14,000,000
12,000,000
10,000,000
8,000,000
6,000,000
4,000,000
2,000,000
‐
2009

2010
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2012
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2014
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Expenses %
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Distributions
7,000,000
6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
‐
2009

2010
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Distributions Breakdown 2018

Education and Training ,
$79,218 , 1%

Hospital Programs ,
$750,471 , 11%

Medical Equipment ,
$70,049 , 1%

Patient Care , $175,588
, 3%

Research , $5,740,810 ,
84%
Hospital Programs

Education and Training

Medical Equipment

Patient Care

Research

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the Foundation achieved income of $16 million. This is an excellent
result and reflective of achievement of the Foundation’s strategic goals. These funds have been
apportioned as:





7.2

42 percent to mission ($6.8 million). This includes $6.4 million from Grants and Other
Hospital Distributions as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements and $.04 million
related to the salaries of clinical trial staff employed through the Foundation as disclosed in
Note 8 to the financial statements. Mission refers to the support of clinical and medical research
activities at RBWH.
31 percent to balance sheet. This will aid in ensuring sufficient capital is available for
supporting the planned growth in distributions to mission in the future in line with the strategic
plan
27 percent to operational costs. These operational costs are covered by revenue from
commercial and investment activities. For the purposes of this report operational costs exclude
the salaries of clinical trial staff employed through the Foundation as this has been included in
mission support.

Historical equity position

The following summarises the historical equity position of the Foundation as extracted from the
audited financial statements:
Year
$ million
Net
Assets

2009
$m

2010
$m

2011
$m

2012
$m

2013
$m

2014
$m

2015
$m

2016
$m

2017
$m

2018
$m

6.2

8.1

9.9

13

17.6

23.5

28

35.9

39.6

44.5
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Net Assets
45,000,000
40,000,000
35,000,000
30,000,000
25,000,000
20,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
‐
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

As mentioned elsewhere, a key component of ensuring the generational viability of the Foundation is
a continued strengthening of its balance sheet. As the balance sheet grows in the future, so does
its ability to increase the quantum of its support to mission.
It ensures the Foundation’s continued solvency and provides the Foundation with the flexibility to
make strategic business investments with a better internal rate of return than cash or equities. The
combination of balance sheet and commercial income also cover all operating expenses, thus
ensuring that all fundraising income is applied as requested by the donor.
Approximately 37 percent of the equity held is for a variety of special purpose funds which are
earmarked to support numerous medical research projects and other initiatives. There is a large
flow through of these funds as money is used for its intended purposes and replaced by further
fundraising income.

8. Historical Performance
The following graphs are presented for interest. They show the total income, expenses, distributions
and equity of the Foundation since inception.

Total Income ‐ $149 million raised since inception
18,000,000
16,000,000
14,000,000
12,000,000
10,000,000
8,000,000
6,000,000
4,000,000
2,000,000
1984‐85
1985‐86
1986‐87
1987‐88
1988‐89
1989‐90
1990‐91
1991‐92
1992‐93
1993‐94
1994‐95
1995‐96
1996‐97
1997‐98
1998‐99
1999‐2000
2000‐2001
2001‐2002
2002‐2003
2003‐2004
2004‐2005
2005‐2006
2006‐2007
2007‐2008
2008‐2009
2009‐2010
2010‐2011
2011‐2012
2012‐2013
2013‐2014
2014‐2015
2015‐2016
2016‐2017
2017‐2018

‐
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Average

Distributions ‐ $60 million distributed since inception

7,000,000

6,000,000

5,000,000

4,000,000

3,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

‐

Net Assets
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Expense as % of Income
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60%
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40%
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20%
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9. Key Achievements


$6.8 million was distributed to RBWH in support of its health initiatives. The Foundation
continues to increase its support of RBWH to further medical research and provide optimal
health care and services. The Foundation supports the Queensland Government’s
objectives for the community. Particularly, delivering quality frontline services by
strengthening our public health system.



Income of $16 million.



A record equity position of $44.5 million (a 12 percent increase on prior year). This will allow
the Foundation to comfortably fund its planned expansion of commercial activities (see
strategic goals). This is the ninth substantial year in a row.



The Foundation’s total expenditure is a very acceptable 27 percent of gross revenue, with
fixed costs being totally covered by income from the Foundation’s commercial and
investment activities.



These results have placed the Foundation in a very strong financial position. It ensures the
Foundation is able to self-fund through its balance sheet and investments.



Achieved positive publicity and media coverage to enhance the reputation of the hospital as
a provider of high quality patient care and a champion of internationally-recognised research.

10. Success Principles
The Foundation’s continuing success and ability to support RBWH is based on two simple
principles:

10.1 Our values
The Foundation has adopted the ‘Public Service Values’. The Foundation’s ambition is to be a
high performing, impartial and productive workforce that puts the people of Queensland first. It is
committed to a way of working where:




leaders and employees make decisions based on values
leaders demonstrate the values as role models for employees
we prioritize quality, inclusion, diversity, creativity, and collaboration every day.

The five values that guide our behaviour and the way the Foundation does business:

Customers first




Know your customers.
Deliver what matters.
Make decisions with empathy.

Ideas in action




Challenge the norm and suggest solutions.
Encourage and embrace new ideas.
Work across boundaries.
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Unleash potential




Expect greatness.
Lead and set clear expectations.
Seek, provide and act on feedback.

Be courageous




Own your actions, successes and mistakes.
Take calculated risks.
Act with transparency.

Empower people




Lead, empower and trust.
Play to everyone’s strengths.
Develop yourself and those around you.

10.2 People
Donors and supporters
The Foundation practices a simple philosophy that at every interaction, each team member aims to
delight the donor/stakeholder. It is recognized that professional, friendly relationship management is
the cornerstone of the business. Experience shows that if this is done well, our business grows by
word of mouth.
The Foundation thanks our many donors, stakeholders, RBWH Executive and staff, and volunteers
for their generous support and friendship.

Our Team
It is recognized that the staff and volunteers are the Foundation’s most valued asset and it strives to
achieve a work environment that brings out the best in each person, where everyone:






believes in themselves, each other, services provided and the organisation
respects and serves each other and internal and external stakeholders equally
owns their actions, promises and professional behaviours
values innovation and creativity as it helps to reinvent each individual and the business
models best practice and ethical behaviour in business, management and governance.

11. Governance and Internal Control
11.1 Pillars of business
During the financial year, the Foundation adopted the following operating structure:
(refer next page)
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11.2 Patron
RBWH Foundation is honoured to have His Excellency, Paul de Jersey AC, QC, Governor of
Queensland, as its patron.
We thank him for his endorsement and ongoing support.

11.3 Board
During the year, three members of the Board resigned after many years of outstanding service. We
thank all of them for their professionalism, guidance and friendship over recent years.
Five new members will be recruited in the next financial year.
Details are:
(refer next page)
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Name of the
Government body
Act or instrument

RBWH Foundation

Functions

Governance and Strategy

Achievements

Delivered another outstanding financial result for the people of Queensland

Financial
Reporting

The Foundation’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards (as issued by AASB), the Financial and
Performance Management Standard 2009 of the Financial Accountability
Act (Qld) 2009 and the Australian Charities and Not-for profits Commission
Act 2012 and Regulation 2013.

Remuneration

The Board serves voluntarily, and no remuneration is paid

Position

Name

Hospital Foundations Act 1982 (replaced by Hospital Foundations Act 2018
on 1 July 2018)

Chair
Leona Murphy
11/2016-9/2019
Member
Alanna Geary
11/2016-9/2019
Member
Luca Fu
11/2016-9/2019
Member
Owen Ung
11/2016-9/2019
Member
John McFarlane
11/2016-9/2019
Member
Balveen Ajimal
11/2016-9/2019
Member
Edward Lin
11/2016-9/2020
Member
Laura Perkins
11/2016-9/2020
Ex-officio member,
Cliff Pollard
Chairs nominee
9/2019
Resigned
Cass George
6/2017
Resigned
Sue Coulter
12/2017
Resigned
Greg Johnston
2/2018
No. scheduled meetings/sessions
Total out of pocket expenses
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Meetings
attended

Approved
fees

Actual fees
received

Nil

Approved
subcommittee
fees
Nil

6 (6)
4 (6)

Nil

Nil

Nil

3 (6)

Nil

Nil

Nil

4 (6)

Nil

Nil

Nil

6 (6)

Nil

Nil

Nil

4 (6)

Nil

Nil

Nil

4 (6)

Nil

Nil

Nil

3 (6)

Nil

Nil

Nil

6 (6)

Nil

Nil

Nil

0 (6)

Nil

Nil

Nil

3 (6)

Nil

Nil

Nil

4 (6)

Nil

Nil

Nil

(in brackets above)
Nil

Nil
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Board profiles
Leona Murphy
Chair
Leona has had an extensive corporate career and is an experienced executive with over 20 years’
experience in senior executive roles for ASX Top 20 listed companies.
Her successful executive career has seen her work across all aspects of business. With a personal
passion for creating community value and community resilience, she led an instrumental program on
Global Resilience, was the Co-Chair of the Board for the United Nations Environmental Program
Finance Initiatives Principles for Sustainable Insurance and was a member of the business advisory
council for World Vision Australia.
In 2015 she was recognised in the Global Category as one of Australia’s Top 100 Women of
Influence in the awards sponsored by the Australian Financial Review.
Her personal passion for community work has led her to RBWH Foundation as Leona believes that
a strong health services sector is fundamental to building a resilient community and she is
committed to dedicating time to assisting the Foundation deliver on its long-term goals, helping
deliver Better Ways to Better Health.
Adjunct Associate Professor Alanna Geary
Alanna is the Executive Director of Nursing Metro North.
Alanna commenced work at the Royal Brisbane Hospital in 1984 after completing her General Nurse
Training in Gympie the same year. In 1987, she commenced her Midwifery Training at what was
then Royal Women’s Hospital, returning to RBH in 1988.
Prior to being appointed to the Executive Director position in March 2015, Alanna was the Nursing
Director in Cancer Care Services at RBWH, a position she held for just over 10 years which evolved
into her being appointed as the Cancer Care Services Directorate Stream Lead for Nursing.
Luca Fu
Luca is Managing Director of YFG Shopping Centres Pty Ltd, Australia’s largest privately-owned
shopping centre portfolio, and has forged a successful career in property development and
management since migrating to Australia from Taiwan in 1991.
Luca oversees a portfolio with an asset value in excess of $2 billion, more than 1,600 retailers and
annual customer traffic of over 80 million visitors.
A committed philanthropist, he is a significant contributor to numerous community organisations as
well as a benefactor of health, education, heritage and the arts. Long-term benefaction relationships
include more than 20 years supporting RBWH Foundation and Mater Foundation. He is a founding
benefactor of the Sister Angela Mary Legacy Fund with the Mater Foundation, benefactor of the
Brisbane City Hall restoration, a proud sponsor of the Out of the Box Festival at QPAC and has
been supporting the Buddha Birth Day Festival at South Bank since its inception more than 20 years
ago.
Professor Owen Ung MBBS, FRACS
Owen is a Breast and Endocrine Surgeon and Professor of Surgery at RBWH UQ Clinical School.
A council member for the Royal Australasian College of Surgeons and Chair of the Queensland
RACS Regional Committee, Owen worked in rural and metropolitan hospitals throughout
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Queensland, and later completed his advanced surgical training at RBWH. He undertook fellowships
at Westmead Hospital in New South Wales and the University of Wales College of Medicine in the
United Kingdom as a lecturer in surgery.
From 1995 to 2008, he has been a Consultant Surgeon at Westmead where he headed the Breast
and Endocrine Surgical Unit and was Director of General Surgery.
John McFarlane
Chair of the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee
John has more than 25 years in leading roles in corporate finance, investments and projects largely
within the resources and technology industries. Combined with 20 years of public company board
and committee experience, John has a broad and practical corporate knowledge base.
For the past 15 years as a professional investor, John has developed his private investment
interests specialising in primary and secondary capital investments in junior companies. The core
pillar to this business has been the application of extensive due diligence and detailed corporate
analysis which his business has undertaken on more than 500 companies.
John has brought this analytical discipline to RBWH Foundation having been a member of the Audit,
Finance and Risk Committee since 2010 and now serves as AFRC Chair.
Balveen Ajimal
Member of the Branding, Fundraising and Marketing Advisory Committee
Balveen is an experienced corporate lawyer and has worked for international lawfirms, private equity
and businesses around the world. Balveen is Director of Sustainability at Queensland Ballet, an
Ambassador for Endometriosis Australia and is an advocate for several women’s charities. She is
passionate about bringing commercial thinking to the not-for-profit sector.
Edward Lin CPA, BBus, MBus
Member of the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee
Edward is a Principal and Director of CEL Accountants and CEL Consulting – two firms he set up in
2006 which provide accounting, taxation, business advisory, migration and education consulting
services to private businesses.
Prior to that, Edward attained a Master of Business (Professional Accounting) and a Bachelor of
Business (International Business/Economics) at Queensland University of Technology. He also
worked for two well-known accounting firms, The Peak Partnership and HLB Mann Judd, prior to
setting up his own businesses.
Edward is an Honorary President of the Australian Taiwanese Chamber of Commerce (QLD) Inc, a
Senior Advisor of both the Taiwanese Chambers of Commerce in Oceania and the World
Taiwanese Chambers of Commerce. He was also appointed an Honorary Business Ambassador of
the Ipswich City Council since 2009 in acknowledgment of his business advisory expertise and
contribution towards community services.
Laura Perkins
Laura was born and educated in the United States, obtaining a Bachelor of Business degree from
California State University. Since then she has worked as a financial analyst and training specialist
and has also owned several businesses.
She brings her entrepreneurial experience and financial background to advise on the RBWH
Foundation Board.
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Associate Professor Cliff Pollard
Cliff is Chair of Queensland’s State-wide Trauma Network. As previous Director of Trauma Services
at RBWH and Director of the Queensland Trauma Registry at the Centre of National Research in
Disability and Rehabilitation Medicine – University of Queensland, Cliff completed his surgical
training in Queensland and obtained post fellowship experience in the United Kingdom.
He was initially Staff Surgeon and then Director of Surgery at Redcliffe Hospital before becoming a
Visiting Medical Officer in general surgery.
For 16 years, Cliff ran a private practice specialising in general and gastrointestinal surgery,
laparoscopic surgery, and endoscopy and colonoscopy
Cass George
Cass had a career in early childhood education and is a speech and drama teacher. Cass is also on
the Australian Youth Orchestra National Advisory Council.
Sue Coulter
Sue is a professional executive with an extensive track record in leading business and technology
transformational change agendas in financial service organisations in UK and Australia. In her
current role as Chief Digital Officer at CUA, Sue is responsible for designing a differentiated
customer experience through digital and physical channels. This requires fostering a culture of
innovation, agility and the use of human centred design rather than traditional ways of working. Sue
is also a strong supporter and advocate of start-ups and a Board member of a start-up organisation
that is developing a digital platform to facilitate peer-to-peer volunteering.
Greg Johnson
Greg has more than 10 years of Board experience in the Healthcare (not-for-profit) sector with
Operation Smile Australia, a children’s charity working, in developing nations. A financial services
professional with extensive experience in the corporate sector most recently, Greg was the
Queensland Divisional Director at Macquarie Bank and prior to that the General Manager of NAB’s
Private Wealth Division, based in Melbourne. Both roles were responsible for the overall
performance of the business plus setting the strategic direction of the business coupled with
stakeholder management and meeting all regulatory obligations.
On a personal level, Greg is community-minded, being volunteer with the ‘139 Club’, which provides
meals for the ‘at risk’, among other community enterprises. Greg lives in Clayfield and also has a
small farm near Warwick running Murray Grey cattle.

CEO profile
Peter Treseder AM, KSJ, CCEO, JP, DipFm, GradCertBus (Philanthropy and Npst), EMFIA, FAICD, FAIM, FIIDM, CFRE, MBA
(Distinction)

Peter joined RBWH Foundation as CEO in July 2009. He gained experience in fundraising for the
hospital sector through his six-year role as Executive Director of The Millennium Foundation Ltd,
which is the fundraising arm of Westmead Hospital and Westmead Millennium Institute.
Peter’s responsibilities include strategic direction and leadership of the team. Peter is committed to
creating a viable long-term charity based on a solid foundation of business strength and acumen.
Peter has a wealth of board and committee experience and is currently the chief convenor of the
Prime Minister’s Community Business Partnership.

2018 Annual Report

23

11.4 Committees
The Board and management of the Foundation are extremely grateful to the many people who give
generously of their time, knowledge, resources, advice, contacts and energy to not only assist in
raising funds for RBWH but to ensure the Foundation continues to operate efficiently and invest
prudently in projects that will provide the most benefit to the health and wellbeing of our patients.
The Foundation is indebted to these individuals for their support and generosity.

Audit, Finance and Risk committee
Assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the financial reporting process, the
system of internal control, the Foundation’s investment strategy, the audit process, strategic and
annual planning, and the Foundation’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations
and the code of conduct.
The Foundation has adopted the single ‘Code of Conduct for the Queensland Public Service’
which was brought in on 1 January 2011. The Code is based on the public-sector principles as
outlined in the Public-Sector Ethics Act 1994 (PSEA):





Integrity and impartiality.
Promoting the public good.
Commitment to the system of government.
Accountability and transparency.

All employees are expected to uphold the Code by committing to and demonstrating the intent and
spirit of the ethics principles and values. The Foundation’s Charter for Growth reflects the ethics
principles in section 4 of PSEA and demonstrates that integrity and accountability are integrated into
the Foundation’s strategies, objectives and actions. The Code is applicable to employees of the
Foundation and includes volunteers (including board members), students, contractors, consultants
and anyone employed in any other capacity. Regular training is provided to all team members to
ensure that the Code is fully understood and enacted.
The Committee has observed the terms of its charter and had due regard to Treasury’s Audit
Committee Guidelines. The Committee is pleased to confirm that each audit recommendation by
QAO is being taken seriously and dealt with appropriately to improve the Foundation’s business. All
the prior year recommendations have been dealt with satisfactorily.
The Committee meets six times a year and systems are in place to ensure the effective, efficient
and economical operation of its function. The Committee is independent of management and the
authorised auditors. Financial advice is provided by JB Were in relation to the equities portion of the
Foundation’s investment portfolio.
Risk is a standing item on the Committee’s agenda and headline risks are reported to each Board
meeting. During 2017-2018 the Committee developed a new Risk Framework, including a Risk
Appetite Statement and has commenced the appointment of internal auditors.
The Committee serves voluntarily without remuneration.
Committee members include:




John McFarlane (Chair and board member)
Edward Lin (Board member)
Peter Lyons (Independent member)
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Sarah Willoughby (Independent member).

Research Advisory committee
Assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the administration of funding to health
science research at the Hospital.
Committee members include:














Professor Gerard Byrne BSc (Med) MBBS (Hons) PhD FRANZCP (Chair)
- Head, Academic Discipline of Psychiatry, UQ
Dr Merrilyn Banks PhD
- Director of Research, RBWH
Professor Murray Mitchell, DPhil, DSc, FRSNZ
- Scientist, UQ Centre for Clinical Research
Professor Robert Tindle PhD
- Professor Emeritus UQ
- Director (Retired) Sir Albert Sakzewski Virus Research Centre, RCH and Clinical
Medical Virology Centre, UQ
Dr Helen Healy
- MO, Department of Renal Medicine
Professor Joan Webster
- Director of Nursing Research, RBWH
Professor Jeffrey Lipman MBBCh, DA, FFA, FFA (Crib Care), FCICM, MD
Director, Intensive Care Services, RBWH
Head, Discipline of Anaesthesiology and Critical Care, UQ
Professor Claire Rickard PhD
- NHMRC Centre for Research Excellence in Nursing Interventions
- Griffith Health Institute Centre for Health Practice Innovation
Ad Ass. Professor Robyn Fox RN, RM, Bed, MNL, PhD, FACN
- Nursing and Midwifery Director – Education
Ad Ass. Professor Ian Coombes Bhpharm, MSC, PhD
- Director of Pharmacy, RBWH
Professor Grant Ramm.
- Group Leader, Hepatic Fibrosis Laboratory, QIMR

Branding, Fundraising and Marketing Advisory committee
Assists the Board with advice on branding, fundraising and marketing.
Committee members include:










Balveen Ajimal
Jo Kearney
Marie Howarth (Chair)
Karen Gallagher (RBWHF Representative)
Peter Evans (RBWHF Representative)
Natalie Hocking
Robyn Gipters
Stacy Trott
Fran Metcalf.
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2017 Royal Dinner Do committee
Organises the annual dinner which raises funds for Motor Neurone Disease research at RBWH.
Committee members include:









Deborah Henderson
Soula Passaris
Nicole Hutchinson
Nicola Robertiello
Karen Gallagher (RBWHF Representative)
Ben Zabel (RBWHF Representative)
Lucy Barnes (RBWHF Representative)
Marty Molloy (RBWHF Representative).

2017 Master Stroke Business Lunch committee
Organises the annual Master Stroke Business Lunch which raises money for stroke research at
RBWH.
Committee members include:











Dr Andrew Wong (Chair)
Genevieve Skinner
Dan Crowley
Zoie Nott
Kerry Browne
Geoff Auckland
Karen Gallagher (RBWHF Representative)
Ben Zabel (RBWHF Representative)
Lucy Barnes (RBWHF Representative)
Marty Molloy (RBWHF Representative).

2017 Butterfly Ball committee
Organises the annual Butterfly Ball which raises money for the Perinatal Research Centre and
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit.
Committee members include:












Cathy Yang (RBWHF Representative)
Bridget Gabites
Tanya Robinson
Pieter Koorts
Donna Hovey
Paul Colditz
Andrew McQuarrie
Poppy Potter
Lynette Chapple
Balveen Ajimal (Chair)
Gail Headley (RBWHF Representative).
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2017 Heartfelt committee
Organises the annual Heartfelt Dinner which raises money for the Burns, Trauma and Critical Care
Research Centre.
Committee members include:











Dr Sia Athanasas
Elizabeth Peat
Jenny Tucker
John Parker
Erica Parker
Gerry Kucharski
Karen Gallagher (RBWHF Representative)
Ben Zabel (RBWHF Representative)
Lucy Barnes (RBWHF Representative)
Marty Molloy (RBWHF Representative).

2018 Right Royal Affair committee
Organises the annual Right Royal Affair black tie dinner which raises untied funds for the
Foundation’s research grants program.
Committee members include:








Laura Perkins
Lisa Smith
Anthony DeStefani
Leona Murphy
Ben Zabel (RBWHF Representative)
Lucy Barnes (RBWHF Representative)
Marty Molloy (RBWHF Representative).

Royal Alumni committee
Guides the ongoing development of the Royal Alumni which provides a platform for past and present
hospital staff to connect on a professional, academic and social basis and keep members updated
on current RBWH activities.
Committee members include:













Associate Professor Cliff Pollard (Chair)
Dr Amanda Dines
Dr Cameron Bennett
Adjunct Associate Professor Alanna Geary (Deputy Chair)
Dr Liz Kenny
Dr Dana Wainwright
Peter Buttrum
Harriet North
Tami Photinos
Peter Slattery
Jeanette Wiley
Dr Judy Graves
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Kellie Furey (RBWHF Representative - until October 2017)
Amy Henderson (RBWHF Representative - from January 2018).

Precious Wings committee
Raises funds to provide memory boxes to grieving parents who have a lost a child. The boxes
become a very personal possession for them to carry out of the hospital and reinforces the fact that
their baby existed and that he or she is loved and remembered. These are distributed at a number
of Queensland hospitals.
Committee members include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Kerry Gordon (Chair)
Kirstie Shaw (resigned in late 2017)
Janella Gibson
Kirsty McKay
Sarah Webber
Peter Evans (RBWHF Representative).

Patients in Need Program
Provide patient necessities, including toiletry packs, underwear, clothing and pajamas, for the
RBWH Sexual Assault Unit, patients from out of town, or homeless patients.
Committee members include:




Laura Perkins (Chair)
RBWH Volunteers
Donations through GIVIT.

BurnsLife
Burnslife is a program that assists burns patients and their loved ones on their road to recovery and
rehabilitation through peer support, education, and care facilities.
Committee members include:











Martha Druery
Kylie Hancock (Co Chair)
Simone James (RBWHF Representative)
Karen Jacques
Charlotte Adderley
Andrew Brown (Co Chair)
James Brown
Glen Volker
Lyndall Reeve
Gail Headley (RBWHF Representative).
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11.5 People
The Foundation has a small but dedicated team of people who believe in RBWH and are committed
to ensuring the hospital is able to provide the best care possible to its patients, ensuring the best
outcomes for them and their families. All staff work tirelessly to raise funds for research, equipment
and other services. Staff are regularly supported in their efforts by their own family and
friends, and to them the Foundation is also grateful.
The team includes:

CEO


Peter Treseder AM, KSJ, CCEO, JP, DipFm, GradCertBus (Philanthropy and Npst), EMFIA, FAICD, FAIM, FIIDM, CFRE,
MBA (Distinction)

Fundraising and Marketing











Karen Gallagher BA
- Director of Fundraising and Marketing
Rita Grice
- Administration and Data Manager
Peter Evans
- Fundraising Manager
Gail Headley
- Community Development and Engagement Manager, Philanthropic Grants Manager
Lucy Barnes
- Business Development and Relationship Manager (Corporate)
Amy Henderson
- Royal Alumni, Legacy and Major Gifts Manager
Marty Molloy Bbus (Marketing)
- Events Manager
Ben Zabel
- Social Media and Event Coordinator
Simone Cooper
- Hospital Volunteers Manager
Cathy Yang BA, MPhil.
- Business Development Manager (part-time)

Corporate Services





Kaelah Bosanquet B Bus (Accounting, Banking and Finance), Grad Cert (Bus Admin), CA
- Chief Financial Officer (part time)
Julie Wright B.Com, CA
- Financial Manager (part time)
Cathy Johnstone
- Accounts Receivable Officer (part-time)
Erin Weir.
- Accounts Payable Officer (part time)

Commercial


Gerard Rollo BA (Admin), CPA, TAE
- Director Commercial Services
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Megha Ahuja
- Manager, Television Service
Matthew Church
- Casual TV Sales
Luke Johnston
- Casual TV Sales
Cameron Rollo
- Casual TV Sales
Ysabel Wilson
- Casual TV Sales
Alex Tilley
- Casual TV Sales
Samuel Frieslaar.
- Casual TV Sales

11.6 Volunteers
Foundation
There are many individuals who volunteer their time and energy to help the Foundation staff at
various events throughout the year. There are also volunteers who regularly report for duty in the
Foundation’s shop at the hospital. The Foundation is extremely grateful to those volunteers who
return time and again to assist whenever they can.
These include:

















Anne Gallagher
Leslie Waugh
LinaLinda Eichin
Mike Norman
Courtney Hayward
Elsie Denholm
Merv Mills
Bronagh O’Hanlon
Elora Ghea
Laura Finch
Georgia Dunn
Andy Iron
Stewart Dalzell
Roland Clarke
Janina Rataj
Michelle Banks.

Hospital
The Hospital Volunteers workforce joined the Foundation in May 2013. There are over 100
dedicated individuals in the team who all carry out significant duties across RBWH. They are an
inspirational group from varied backgrounds, with some members having volunteered their services
for many decades.
The Hospital Volunteers are an integral part of the hospital providing warmth and personality in such
a large environment. They generously devote their time and talents to assist patients and hospital
visitors with directions at various points of the Hospital, staff the Intensive Care Unit reception desk,

2018 Annual Report

30
entertain Oncology and Geriatric patients, operate the patient laundry service, assist with the
Hospital’s “Eat Walk Engage” program, activities in the Mental Health Unit and perform various other
administrative duties throughout the Hospital.
We also have a team of volunteer JP’s who provide services to patients’ bedside, staff and hospital
visitors. This very valued service operates 5 days a week between the hours of 9.30am – 4pm.

12. Mission Support
Total mission support of $6.8 million was composed of:
 Hospital Programs
$750,471
 Education and Training
$79,218
 Medical Equipment
$70,049
 Patient Care
$175,588
 Research
$2,478,954
 Clinical Trials
$3,261,856 *
* includes clinical trial salaries of $383,747 (refer note 8 of the financial statements)

12.1 Research
The Foundation’s primary method of distributing funds raised for clinical research conducted at the
hospital is through its annual Research Grant Awards program.
Grant submissions are received from across the hospital campus for a diverse range of proposed
research projects. Each of these submissions is reviewed by the Foundation’s Research Advisory
Committee which then awards the grants based on merit. The grants are designed to enable
projects to get off the ground and establish a basis from which the researchers can apply for more
substantial grants from larger external bodies. In 2017-2018, $750,000 was distributed by RBWH
Foundation via Research Project Grants, $150,000 in Patricia Dukes Foundation Fellowship
renewals and $6,000 was awarded as part of the Sir Ian McFarlane Annual Nursing Awards.
The Foundation also provides funding to several research centres based at RBWH for ongoing
projects and pays rent for laboratories in QIMR’s Bancroft Centre to enable a number of key
research groups to continue their work. Some examples of the ongoing research being funded by
the Foundation include:


Burns, Trauma and Critical Care Research Centre (BTCCRC)
This Centre boasts the most active research program at the hospital and its research to date
has had a significant impact on patient care and outcomes. The Centre continues to have
six main research themes - Critical Care, Drug Dosing and Pharmacokinetics, Burns,
Anaesthesia, Emergency Medicine and Military Medicine. BTCCRC also works closely with
Infectious Diseases, Pharmacy and other departments as part of UQ’s REDUCE Centre of
Excellence (REdefining antimicrobial use to reDUce resistance), a group focussed on
combatting Superbugs through more intelligent use of antibiotics. BTCCRC is the beneficiary
of RBWH Foundation’s annual HeARTfelt Dinner.



Motor Neurone Disease (MND) research
This research area has developed significantly over the past ten years due to increased
funding raised by the Foundation through events, donations and community activities. In the
2017-2018 financial year, the MND research team have used money raised to support two
dedicated research co-ordinators, a Neuromuscular Fellow, and a part-time
Neuropsychologist to explore the cognitive aspects of MND. Foundation funding as also
enabled the continuation of the Scott Sullivan Fellowship. In 2017-2018, research team was
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the first centre in Queensland to partner with Implicit Bioscience to test a novel drug on 10
MND patients and have been involved in several other clinical trials. The team also continues
to explore biomarkers for the disease through its Neurofilament Study and is part of a
national collaboration exploring the clinical and genetic links in MND. The MND research
team is beneficiary of RBWH Foundation’s annual Royal Daytime Do lunch event and
various other third-party activities.


Perinatal Research Centre (PRC)
The multidisciplinary research team in this Centre is committed to understanding and
ultimately preventing pregnancy and birth complications for mothers and babies through
world-class biomedical and clinical research. PRC conducts cutting-edge research into the
prevention of stillbirth, protection of a sick baby’s brain, and how to optimise the environment
for better outcomes for the most vulnerable babies. Funds raised in 2017-2018 have
enabled the PRC to commence two new research projects that will (i) repair the brain after
damage using stem cells and (ii) discover how the brain electrical activity (EEG) develops in
babies which is fundamental to better rehabilitation treatments after brain injury. PRC is cobeneficiary of RBWH Foundation’s annual Butterfly Ball.

12.2 Other activities
Throughout 2017-2018 financial year, the Foundation has raised money and provided funding for a
number of items and activities at the hospital that are not necessarily research related. A sample of
these activities include:


Purchase of additional fridges/freezers for the Queensland Milk Bank in the Grantley Stable
Neonatal Unit so that it can extend its services to other hospitals throughout Queensland.



Continuation of the Adolescent Mental Health Unit’s Gym Program (a collaboration with the
Physiotherapy department) and the “I Hear You” music therapy program.



Continuation of funding for the Prevent Alcohol-Related Trauma in Youth (P.A.R.T.Y.)
Program.



Purchase of two wheelchairs for the Burns Unit.



Purchase of an Oxford Chair for the Burns Unit.



Purchase of an incubator and stand plus a peristatic pump for the Queensland Skin Culture
Centre.



Purchase of three shower chairs for orthopaedic patients in Ward 7A South (following a
request from the hospital’s Consumer Advocacy Group).



Purchase of two shower chairs and a Motomed service for the Burns Unit.



Continuation of the Patients-in-Need Service run by the Volunteers Manager to provide
pyjamas, clothing and other essential items to patients who arrive at hospital with nothing or
very little.



Continued support of the Sexual Assault Unit, providing clothing and essential items to
women and men in need.
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Continued support of the Precious Wings program which provides memory boxes and
miscarriage bags to parents who have lost a child in the hospital environment.



Continued support of the Burnslife Program.



Continued funding of the Queensland Motion Analysis Centre.



Continuation of funding for the Therapy Dog program which includes visits to patients in the
RBWH Mental Health Treatment and Rehabilitation facility at Somerset Villas in Windsor as
well as the hospital’s Geriatric Evaluation and Management Unit, Surgical Department and
the Mental Health Unit on the hospital campus.



Funding of medical staff to attend various international conferences and training programs.



Sponsorship of the annual RBWH Health Care Symposium and associated awards.



Support of Team Royal – a new initiative designed to engage hospital staff and develop a
more cohesive culture across all departments.

13. Funding of Mission
The core means by which funding of mission has been achieved is via relationship fundraising,
bequests, commercial and investment activities:


Developing long-term relationships with supporters.



Growing and diversifying the Foundation’s community of supporters.



Ensuring standards of excellence are met in communication to supporters and database
management.



Using all appropriate fundraising tools, techniques and resources, including events, direct
mail, bequest programs, and community engagement programs, amongst other activities.



A dominant aspect of the fundraising plan is that it should be a lifelong process of building
support, based on long-term, positive and mutually beneficial relationships between donors,
prospective donors, the community at large and the Foundation. If done well, a very
personal relationship will be created between donors and the Foundation, one in which basic
values and purposes are reinforced over time and in which regular communication and
stewardship are critical ingredients.



The establishment of financially viable commercial and investment activities.

The success of this plan is evidenced by the increasing availability of funds and resources to
support the hospital, its staff and patients in areas not otherwise funded by Queensland Health.

14. External Scrutiny
There was one external agency review or audit conducted on the Foundation during the reporting
period.


A financial audit which is disclosed in the attached statutory accounts.
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15. Machinery of Government Changes
There has been no major machinery of government changes which have affected the Foundation
during the reporting period.
The Proclamation to commence the provisions of the Hospital Foundations Act 2018 (and
Regulation) was made by the Governor in June 2018 with the new Act officially commencing on 1
July 2018.
The new Act incorporates a provision which encourages hospital foundations to seriously consider
request made to them by their respective area health services.
Moving forward, the Foundation will continue to work closely with Metro North Hospital and Health
Service and Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital to ensure that front line health services are
delivered in a coordinated and strategic manner.

16. Review of Proposed Forward Operations
Plans and priorities are reviewed continuously by the Board and management team to ensure that
these remain consistent to the strategic plan.

17. Strategic Workforce Planning and Performance
The Foundation has created a flexible working environment (in terms of flexible hours and working
from home arrangements) and has improved the work space. Workforce planning is continuously
reviewed depending upon the daily needs of the Foundation. There is a performance management
framework which includes induction processes, educational opportunities, performance
management (including a KPI structure linked to job descriptions and budgets), and a recognition
and rewards program. The Foundation has a full-time equivalent staff of 18 and a permanent
separation rate of 16 percent.
Much use is made of volunteer assistance on the various committees and in relation to organisation
of the various fundraising initiatives. Recruitment is done in line with the Foundation’s recruitment
policy and remuneration policy when hiring permanent employees to the team. This assists in
attracting the brightest and best and ensures that a professional approach to every aspect of
operations is maintained. The workforce profile is included under point 11.5.
During the current year, the team and management team participated in a variety of staff
engagement activities.

18. Information Systems and Record Keeping
The Foundation implemented a Documents and Records Management Policy in May 2014. In
conjunction with this policy, the Foundation follows and completes the State Archive Retention and
Disposal Schedule (RDS). All paper records are securely housed by Grace Records Management
and where possible an electronic copy of all paperwork is retained on the system. The Foundation
endeavours to implement a Business Classification Scheme (BCS) within the next year.
Once the BCS is complete, the Foundation may look at implementing a new electronic Document
and Records Management Software (eDRMS) solution. This solution is yet to be chosen and
implemented.
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19. Open Data – Consultancies, Overseas Travel and
Government Bodies
No expenditure was incurred with regards to overseas travel, consultancy services and
implementation of the Queensland Language Services Policy during 2017-2018.
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Attachment One
Compliance Letter
30 August 2018
The Honourable Steven Miles MP
Minister for Health and Minister for Ambulance Services
GPO Box 48
Brisbane QLD 4001

Dear Minister
I am pleased to submit for presentation to Parliament the Annual Report 2017-2018 and
financial statements for Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital Foundation.
I certify that this Annual Report complies with the:


prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and
Performance Management Standard 2009, and



detailed requirements set out in the Annual Report requirements for Queensland
Government agencies.

A checklist outlining the annual reporting requirements can be found at page 38 of this Annual
Report or accessed at www.rbwhfoundation.com.au.
Yours sincerely

Leona Murphy
Chair
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Attachment Two
Charter for Growth – Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital Foundation: 2017-2018 – 2022-2023
(Reviewed and Updated: 2017)

MISSION
Better Ways to Better Health

Why we exist

KEY GOALS
What outcomes
we will achieve

1. To become known throughout
Queensland as the fundraising body
which enhances patient care at
Royal Brisbane and Women’s
Hospital.

2. To grow the Foundation’s ability to
deliver distributions to its mission through
excellence in fundraising practice.

3. To seek opportunities for
alliances with RBWH and Metro
North Hospital and Health Service,
donors and stakeholders, which
drives expansion of commercial
opportunities and revenue growth.

4. To apply a sound financial
model which ensures the
Foundation meets its mission.

5. To create a culture where everyone is
passionate about the Foundation’s mission –
“Better Wys to Better Health.”

KEY STRATEGIES
How we will
achieve our
success






 We will better understand and foster
relationships with donors.
 We will grow the existing data base.
 We will actively seek opportunities to
introduce new revenue streams.
 We will continue to foster a best
practice, ethical and sustainable
fundraising model.
 We will focus efforts on the achievement
of undirected monies in order to increase
the level of seed grants to be distributed.

We will review and refine the
brand and key measures as
appropriate.
We will work closely with the
hospital and its researchers to
ensure all positive stories are
uncovered and communicated
to the general community.
We will increase awareness of
the Foundation through
expanding our audience,
targeting messages to defined
segments as appropriate.




We will ensure each of our
commercial initiatives is
operating successfully.
We will continually seek out and
evaluate business and alliance
opportunities.

 We will grow the corpus and
distribute its earnings as
appropriate annually.
 We will conservatively manage
the balance sheet via
appropriate investment
strategies.



 Balance sheet equity to reach
$56 million by 2022-2023 (a
minimum of 50% is to be
undirected).






We will ensure the executive team
and each team member sets an
example for each other by
demonstrated support of mission.
We will encourage this with all our
stakeholders.
We will operationalise, and adjust as
appropriate, the results of the biannual
staff survey to ensure a continuing
excellent culture.

PERFORMANCE MEASURES
How will we
measure our
success



Increase in brand
awareness evidenced by
growing supporter base and
increased revenue.

 Fundraising revenues to increase to
$7.1 million by 2022-2023.
 $6.6 million distribution to mission by
2022-2023.
 1,000 new donors achieved by 20222023




Commercial revenues to
increase to $1.1 million by 20222023.
Revenue from various alliances
to reach $7.8 million by 20222023.



A harmonious and cooperative culture
exists in the team.
Measured by the biannual staff survey
providing an overall result of 7 or
better.

FINANCIAL OBJECTIVE
Create a long – term, sustainable fundraising revenue stream.

How we will fund
our goals

GUIDING VALUES
What guides our
behaviours

COMMITMENT
We believe in ourselves, each
other, our services and our
organisation.

RESPECT
We respect and serve each other and
internal and external stakeholders
equally.

RESPONSIBILITY
We all own our actions, promises and
professional behaviours.

INNOVATION
We value innovation and creativity as it helps to
reinvent ourselves and our business.

CONTRIBUTION TO GOVERNMENT OBJECTIVES FOR THE COMMUNITY
The Foundation supports the Queensland Government’s objectives for the community. Particularly, strengthening our public health system.
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PROFESSIONALISM
We model best practice
and ethical behaviour in
business, management
and governance.
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Attachment Three
Charter for Growth – Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital Foundation: 2018-2019 – 2022-2023
(Reviewed and Updated: 2018)

MISSION
Better Ways to Better Health (This is being relooked at as part of the More Strategic review)

Why we exist

KEY GOALS
What outcomes
we will achieve

1. To become known throughout
Queensland as the fundraising body
which enhances patient care at
Royal Brisbane and Women’s
Hospital. (this is being relooked at as
part of the More Strategic review and
market research)

2. To grow the Foundation’s ability to
deliver distributions to its mission through
excellence in fundraising practice.

3. To seek opportunities for
alliances with RBWH and Metro
North Hospital and Health Service,
donors and stakeholders, which
drives expansion of commercial
opportunities and revenue growth.

4. To apply a sound financial
model which ensures the
Foundation meets its mission.

5. To create a culture where everyone is
passionate about the Foundation’s mission –
Better Ways to Better Health.

KEY STRATEGIES
How we will
achieve our
success





We will develop a brand
appreciation index which will
allow us to review and refine the
brand and key measures as
appropriate. (this is a part of the
More Strategic review and
market research)
We will focus on building brand
appreciation. We will then
define what it is that we want
people to appreciate about us,
the brand appreciation index,
and we’ll use that to measure
progress.

 We will better understand and foster
relationships with donors.
 We will grow the existing data base.
 We will actively seek opportunities to
introduce new revenue streams.
 We will continue to foster a best
practice, ethical and sustainable
fundraising model.
 We will focus efforts on the achievement
of undirected monies in order to increase
the level of seed grants to be distributed.




We will ensure each of our
commercial initiatives is
operating successfully.
We will continually seek out and
evaluate business and alliance
opportunities.

 We will grow the corpus and
distribute its earnings as
appropriate annually.
 We will manage the balance
sheet and investments within
the confines of our risk
appetite.










We will ensure the executive team
and each team member sets an
example for each other by
demonstrated support of mission.
We will encourage this with all our
stakeholders.
We will operationalise, and adjust as
appropriate, the results of the biannual
staff survey to ensure a continuing
excellent culture.

PERFORMANCE MEASURES
How will we
measure our
success



Appreciation index shows
stakeholders are engaged
with supporting RBWH. (this
is being relooked at as part
of the More Strategic review
and market research)

 Fundraising revenues to increase to
$6.8 million by 2022-2023.
 $6.6 million distribution to mission by
2022-2023.
 1,000 new donors achieved by 20222023



Revenue from various alliances
to reach $11.8 million by 20222023.

Balance sheet equity to reach
$61 million by 2022-2023 (a
minimum of 50% is to be
undirected).



A harmonious and cooperative culture
exists in the team.
Measured by the biannual staff survey
providing an overall result of 7 or
better.

FINANCIAL OBJECTIVE
Create sustainable revenue streams.

How we will fund
our goals

GUIDING VALUES
What guides
our behaviours

COMMITMENT
We believe in
ourselves, each other,
our services and our
organisation.

RESPECT
We respect and serve each
other and internal and external
stakeholders equally.

RESPONSIBILITY
We all own our actions,
promises and professional
behaviours.

INNOVATION
We value innovation and creativity as it
helps to reinvent ourselves and our
business.

PROFESSIONALISM
We model best practice and ethical behaviour in business,
management and governance.

CONTRIBUTION TO GOVERNMENT OBJECTIVES FOR THE COMMUNITY
The Foundation supports the Queensland Government’s objectives for the community. Particularly, strengthening our public health system.
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Attachment Four
Compliance Checklist (Template)
Summary of requirement

Basis for requirement

Annual report
reference

Letter of
compliance



A letter of compliance from the accountable
officer or statutory body to the relevant
Minister/s

ARRs – section 7

35

Accessibility



Table of contents

ARRs – section 9.1

3



Glossary



Public availability

ARRs – section 9.2

2



Interpreter service statement

Queensland Government
Language Services Policy

2

4

ARRs – section 9.3


Copyright notice

Copyright Act 1968

2

ARRs – section 9.4


Information Licensing

QGEA – Information
Licensing

N/A

ARRs – section 9.5


Introductory Information

ARRs – section 10.1

5



Agency role and main functions

ARRs – section 10.2

5



Machinery of Government changes

ARRs – section 31 and 32

33



Operating environment

ARRs – section 10.3

6



Government’s objectives for the community

ARRs – section 11.1

5/15



Other whole-of-government plans / specific
initiatives

ARRs – section 11.2

-



Agency objectives and performance indicators

ARRs – section 11.3

7



Agency service areas and service standards

ARRs – section 11.4

-

Financial
performance



Summary of financial performance

ARRs – section 12.1

10

Governance –
management and
structure



Organisational structure

ARRs – section 13.1

17



Executive management

ARRs – section 13.2

28



Government bodies (statutory bodies and other
entities)

ARRs – section 13.3

-



Public Sector Ethics Act 1994

Public Sector Ethics Act
1994

General
information

Non-financial
performance

23

ARRs – section 13.4

Governance –
risk management



Queensland public service values

ARRs – section 13.5

15



Risk management

ARRs – section 14.1

23



Audit committee

ARRs – section 14.2

23
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Attachment Four
Compliance Checklist (Template)
Summary of requirement
and
accountability

Governance –
human
resources

Basis for requirement

Annual report
reference



Internal audit

ARRs – section 14.3

23



External scrutiny

ARRs – section 14.4

32



Information systems and recordkeeping

ARRs – section 14.5

33



Strategic workforce planning and performance

ARRs – section 15.1

33



Early retirement, redundancy and retrenchment

Directive No.11/12 Early
Retirement, Redundancy
and Retrenchment

-

Directive No.16/16 Early
Retirement, Redundancy
and Retrenchment (from 20
May 2016)
ARRs – section 15.2
Open Data

Financial
statements



Statement advising publication of information

ARRs – section 16

34



Consultancies

ARRs – section 33.1

34



Overseas travel

ARRs – section 33.2

34



Queensland Language Services Policy

ARRs – section 33.3

34



Certification of financial statements

FAA – section 62

64

FPMS – sections 42, 43 and
50
ARRs – section 17.1


Independent Auditor’s Report

FAA – section 62
FPMS – section 50
ARRs – section 17.2

FAA

Financial Accountability Act 2009

FPMS

Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009

ARRs

Annual report requirements for Queensland Government agencies

2018 Annual Report

65

Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
(ABN 37 882 212 480)

Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Contents

Page No.

The Financial Statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income

3

Balance Sheet

4

Statement of Changes in Equity

5

Statement of Cash Flows

6

Note 1:

Basis of Financial Statement Preparation

7

Note 2:

Donations and Fundraising Activities

9

Note 3:

User Charges and Fees

9

Note 4:

Grant and Clinical Trial Income

10

Note 5:

Finance Income and Costs

10

Note 6:

Gain on the Sale/Re-measurement of Assets

10

Note 7:

Other Revenue

11

Note 8:

Employee Expenses

11

Note 9:

Supplies and Services

12

Note 10:

Other Expenses

13

Note 11:

Grants and Other Hospital Distributions

13

Note 12:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

13

Note 13:

Receivables

14

Note 14:

Financial Assets

14

Note 15:

Investment Properties

15

Note 16:

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation Expense

15

Note 17:

Payables

18

Note 18:

Accrued Employee Benefits

18

Our Financial Performance

Our Financial Position

Other Disclosures
Note 19:

Information on Fair Value Measurement

18

Note 20:

Financial Instruments

19

Note 21:

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Disclosure

20

Note 22:

Related Party Transactions

22

Note 23:

Commitments

23

Note 24:

Contingencies

23

Note 25:

Events Occurring after Balance Date

23

Certifications
Management Certificate

24

Independent Auditor’s Report

25

2

Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes

2018

2017

$

$

Income from Continuing Operations
Donations and Fundraising Income

2

3,658,925

3,127,764

User Charges and Fees

3

3,153,425

2,747,648

Grant and Clinical Trial Income

4

5,769,006

5,538,901

Finance Income

5

1,608,225

1,227,594

Gain on Sale/Re-measurement of Assets

6

1,237,906

915,451

Other Revenue

7

581,891

512,329

16,009,377

14,069,687

8

2,226,667

2,130,126

Supplies and Services

9

1,783,098

1,748,253

Depreciation

16

307,541

479,089

Finance / Borrowing Costs

5

121,057

112,147

Total Income from Continuing Operations

Expenses from Continuing Operations
Employee Expenses

Other Expenses

10

269,870

184,178

Grants and Other Hospital Distributions

11

6,432,391

5,756,491

11,140,624

10,410,284

4,868,754

3,659,403

-

-

4,868,754

3,659,403

Total Expenses from Continuing Operations

Operating Result from Continuing Operations

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2018

Notes

2018

2017

$

$

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

12

2,597,367

2,986,906

Receivables

13

2,855,323

2,374,775

Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets

14

26,819,538

24,097,822

182,485

199,834

32,454,713

29,659,337

Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Non Current Assets
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

14

11,897,433

9,809,406

Investment Properties

15

3,750,000

3,535,000

Property, Plant and Equipment

16

94,795

402,652

Total Non Current Assets

15,742,228

13,747,058

Total Assets

48,196,941

43,406,395

Current Liabilities
Payables

17

3,193,988

3,182,639

Accrued Employee Benefits

18

383,527

335,457

99,517

249,626

3,677,032

3,767,722

58,798

46,314

58,798

46,314

3,735,829

3,814,036

44,461,112

39,592,359

Accumulated Surplus

44,461,112

39,592,359

Total Equity

44,461,112

39,592,359

Deferred Income

Total Current Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities
Accrued Employee Benefits

Total Non Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

18

Equity

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

4

Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Accumulated
Surplus

TOTAL

$

$

35,932,956

35,932,956

3,659,403

3,659,403

-

-

3,659,403

3,659,403

Balance as at 30 June 2017

39,592,359

39,592,359

Balance as at 1 July 2017

39,592,359

39,592,359

4,868,754

4,868,754

-

-

4,868,754

4,868,754

44,461,113

44,461,113

Balance as at 1 July 2016
Operating Result from Continuing Operations
Other Comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Operating Result from Continuing Operations
Other Comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Balance as at 30 June 2018

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Notes

2018

2017

$

$

Donations and Fundraising Activities

3,615,096

2,649,178

User Charges and Fees

2,890,973

2,861,708

Grants and Clinical Trial Income

Cash flows from Operating Activities
Inflows:

5,738,871

5,221,338

Other income

359,090

512,329

GST Collected from Customers

890,400

819,680

Employee Expenses

(2,169,655)

(2,063,727)

Supplies and Services

(1,684,908)

(1,788,660)

Grants and Other Hospital Distributions

Outflows:

(6,483,711)

(5,056,789)

GST Paid to Suppliers

(635,190)

(632,174)

GST Remitted to ATO

(227,584)

(215,206)

Other Expenses

(286,164)

(184,549)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

2,007,218

2,123,128

666,990

468,571

Cash flows from Investing Activities
Inflows:
Interest Income
Dividend Income

726,927

399,242

Proceeds from Sales of Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

2,083,978

5,673,548

Proceeds from Sales of Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets

8,254,870

9,431,732

Outflows:
Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment
Payments for Available-For-Sale Financial Assets
Payments for Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets
Management Fees

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net Cash Provided by / (Used in) Financing Activities

-

(5,693)

(3,141,682)

(6,087,514)

(10,869,216)

(10,604,257)

(118,624)

(109,450)

(2,396,757)

(833,821)

-

-

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(389,539)

1,289,307

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Financial Year

2,986,906

1,697,599

2,597,367

2,986,906

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Financial Year

12

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note 1 – Basis of Financial Statement Preparation
(a) General Information about the Reporting Entity
These financial statements cover the Royal Brisbane and Women’s Hospital Foundation (the Foundation). The Foundation is
a Statutory Body established under the Hospitals Foundation Act 1982 . The objective of the foundation is to raise money to
help fund clinical research, hospital programs, purchases of vital pieces of equipment, enable key health professionals to
attend training programs and provide better patient care. The Foundation does not control other entities. The financial
statements include the value of all income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity for the Foundation as an individual entity.

(b) Authorisation of Financial Statements for Issue
The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Chief Executive Officer and Chair of the Board at the date of signing
the Management Certificate.

(c) Compliance with Prescribed Requirements
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and
Performance Management Standard 2009 and the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 and
Regulation 2013.
The Foundation is a not-for-profit entity and these general purpose financial statements are prepared in compliance with the
requirements of Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations applicable to not-forprofit entities.
The financial Statements are prepared on an accrual basis (with the exception of the statement of cash flows which is
prepared on a cash basis).

(d) Underlying Measurement Basis
The historical cost convention is used as the measurement basis except investment properties and available for sale financial
assets which are measured as fair value.

(e) Presentation matters
Currency and Rounding - Amounts included in the financial statements are in Australian dollars. Amounts are rounded to the
nearest dollar.
Comparatives – Comparative information reflects the audited 2016-17 financial statements.
Current/Non-Current Classification - Assets are classified as 'current' where their carrying amount is expected to be realised
within 12 months after the reporting date. Liabilities are classified as 'current' when they are due to be settled within 12 months
after the reporting date, or the Foundation does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement to beyond 12 months after
the reporting date. All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
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Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note 1 – Basis of Financial Statement Preparation (continued)
(f) Taxation
The Foundation is exempted from income tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and is exempted from other forms
of Commonwealth taxation with the exception of Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax (GST).

Trade debtors and creditors in the Balance Sheet are shown inclusive of GST. Accrued receivables and payables are shown
exclusive of GST. GST credits receivable from, and GST payable to, the ATO at reporting date are separately recognised in
receivables within Note 13.

(g) Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The preparation of financial statements necessarily requires the determination and use of certain critical accounting estimates,
assumptions, and management judgements that have the potential to cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Such estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
future periods as relevant.

Estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial statement notes:

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment - Note 16
Depreciation - Note 16
Accrued Employee Benefits - Note 18
Contingencies - Note 24
(h) New and Revised Accounting Standards
Early Adoption of Accounting Standards and Interpretations
No Accounting Pronouncements were early adopted in the 2017-18 financial year.
Voluntary Changes in Accounting Policy
No voluntary changes in accounting policies occurred during the 2017-18 financial year.
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Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note 2 – Donations and Fundraising Activities

Bequests & memorial gifts

2018

2017

$

$

645,687

412,010

1,471,894

814,438

279,014

130,738

Fundraising event income

1,262,330

1,770,578

Total

3,658,925

3,127,764

Donations received
Sponsorships

Accounting Policy
Contributions, donations and gifts that are non-reciprocal in nature (i.e. do not require any goods or services to be provided in
return) are recognised as revenue in the year in which the Foundation obtains control over them at the time of receipt.
Revenue from sponsorships or event registrations are recognised upon delivery of the event or sponsorship conditions at
which time the Foundation becomes legally entitled to the revenue.
The Foundation also receives contribution of assets which are recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in the
Balance Sheet, with a corresponding amount of revenue recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office.

Note 3 – User Charges and Fees

Carpark Income

2018

2017

$

$

1,810,326

1,661,234

Television hire income

823,397

816,163

Hospital conferences and workshops

519,702

270,251

3,153,425

2,747,648

Total

Accounting Policy
Revenue from car parking is recognised as it accrues based on estimates provided by external parties. The Foundation
becomes legally entitled to the share of the carpark revenue upon the completed delivery of the car parking service to the
customer (which occurs at the point of customer payment upon exiting the car park).

Revenue from television hire is recognised on delivery of the television service to the patient.
Revenue from conferences, seminars and workshops is recognised on delivery of the program or session to attendees.
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Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note 4 – Grant and Clinical Trial Income
2018

2017

$

$

Non-Reciprocal Grant Income

918,651

639,538

Reciprocal Grant Income

787,649

1,347,848

Clinical Trials

4,062,706

3,551,515

Total

5,769,006

5,538,901

Accounting Policy
Income from grants administered by the Foundation that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue when they
are received. Income from grants administered by the Foundation that are reciprocal in nature are recognised as services are
rendered and / or contract milestones are completed.
Clinical trial income is recognised once contract milestones have been complete or records have been monitored by the
sponsor to ensure protocols have been followed at which time the Foundation becomes legally entitled to receive the income.

Note 5 – Finance Income and Costs
2018

2017

$

$

Interest income on bank deposits

773,853

710,785

Dividend income on equity funds

834,372

516,809

1,608,225

1,227,594

Bank Charges

27,125

19,062

Management fees on managed funds

93,933

93,085

121,057

112,147

Total Finance Income

Total Finance Costs

Accounting Policy
Dividend income is recognised when the dividend is declared. Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Note 6 – Gains on the sale/re-measurement of assets
2018

2017

$

$

Realised Gains on financial assets

159,231

388,182

Unrealised Gains on financial assets

863,675

317,269

Unrealised Gains on investment properties

215,000

210,000

1,237,906

915,451

Total

10

Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note 7 – Other Revenue
2018

2017

$

$

Rental Income

405,553

395,696

Merchandise sales

169,525

115,233

Other

6,812

1,400

Total

581,891

512,329

2018

2017

$

$

1,931,316

1,900,300

51,152

7,807

180,286

179,172

10,024

10,734

Workers’ compensation premium

8,640

7,750

Other employee related expenses

45,250

24,363

2,226,667

2,130,126

18

19

Note 8 – Employee Expenses

Employee Benefits
Wages and salaries
Annual leave expense
Employer superannuation contributions
Long service leave expense
Employee Related Expenses

Total Foundation Employee Benefits

Number of Employees:

The number of employees as at 30 June, including both full-time and part-time employees, measured on a full-time equivalent
basis.
Note: Included in employee benefits is $383,747 (2017: $483,055) of salaries and on-costs related to the employment of
clinical trial nurses and hospital administration staff. This equates to 3.4 (2017: 4) full time equivalent employees.

Accounting Policy
Short-term employee benefits - wages, salaries, annual and sick leave
Wages, salaries and annual leave due but unpaid at the reporting date are recognised in the Balance Sheet at the current
salary rate(s). As the Foundation expects such liabilities to be wholly settled within 12 months of reporting date, the liabilities
are recognised at undiscounted amounts.

Prior history indicates that on average, sick leave taken each reporting period is less than the entitlement accrued. This is
expected to continue in future periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely that existing accumulated entitlements will be used by
employees and no liability for unused sick leave entitlements is recognised. As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is
recognised for this leave as it is taken.
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Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note 8 – Employee Expenses Cont.
Other long-term employee benefits - Long service leave
Long service leave liabilities are classified and measured as other long term employee benefits as the Foundation does not
expect to wholly settle all such liabilities within the 12 months following reporting date.

Other long-term employee benefits are presented as current liabilities where the Foundation does not have an unconditional
right to defer payment for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made to
employees. Expected future payments take into account anticipated future wage/salary levels, expected employee departures
and periods of ineligible service. These are discounted using market yields on Australian Government bond rates at the end of
the reporting period that coincide with the expected timing of estimated future payments.

All directly associated on-costs (e.g. employer superannuation contributions and workers' compensation insurance) are also
recognised as liabilities, where these on-costs are material.

Bonus Payments
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus plans if the Foundation has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can
be estimated reliably.
The maximum bonus an employee is entitled to is 5% of their total remuneration package. The bonus is only payable upon
firstly meeting financial criteria as set by the Board of the Foundation and thereafter upon successfully achieving individual
KPI’s as set by the Chief Executive Officer on a year by year basis. The KPI’s of the Chief Executive Officer are set by the
Board.

Superannuation
Superannuation benefits are provided through defined contribution (accumulation) plans, in accordance with employees’
conditions of employment and employee instructions as to superannuation plan (where applicable).
Defined Contribution Plans – Employer contributions are based on rates specified under conditions of employment. The
Foundation’s contributions are expensed when they become payable at each fortnightly pay period.

Note 9 – Supplies and Services
2018
Event Expenses
Marketing Expenses
Merchandise
TV Operations
Property expenses
Total

2017

$

$

1,277,457

1,212,580

133,752

117,856

61,751

61,500

226,896

196,902

83,242

159,415

1,783,098

1,748,253
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Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note 10 - Other Expenses
2018

2017

$

$

Insurance premiums - QGIF

19,116

19,516

External audit fees

24,000

25,000

IT expenses

89,574

49,361

Office Rent

39,998

45,000

Legal Fees

-

2,725

97,182

42,576

269,870

184,178

2018

2017

$

$

Research grants and expenditure

2,478,954

2,641,162

Clinical Trials

2,878,109

2,158,906

70,049

41,376

Other administration expenses
Total

Note 11 – Grants and Other Hospital Distributions

Medical Equipment
Educations and Training of Medical Staff

79,218

61,049

Hospital Programs

750,471

792,287

Patient Care

175,588

61,713

6,432,391

5,756,491

Total

Accounting Policy
Grants and other hospital distributions are recognised as expenditure upon acceptance and acknowledgement of the grant by
the recipient.

Note 12 – Cash and Cash Equivalents
2018
Petty cash and floats
Cash at bank
Cash management accounts
Total

2017

$

$

3,780

8,120

2,410,774

2,840,251

182,812

138,535

2,597,367

2,986,906

Accounting Policy
Cash and cash equivalents include all cash and cheques receipted at 30 June as well as deposits held at call with financial
institutions.
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Royal Brisbane & Women’s Hospital Foundation
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note 13 – Receivables

Trade debtors
GST receivable
GST payable

Accrued income

2018

2017

$

$

1,068,684

942,922

200,770

236,639

(215,010)

(223,253)

(14,239)

13,386

1,498,706

1,215,299

Investment income receivable

301,822

202,715

Other receivables

350.00

Total

2,855,323

453
2,374,775

Accounting Policy
Trade debtors are recognised at the nominal amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed
purchase/contract price. Settlement terms are within 30 days from invoice date.
The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically with provision being made for impairment. All known bad debts were
written-off as at 30 June. Increases in the allowance for impairment are based on loss events that have occurred.
There was no provision made for impairment of receivables in 2017-18 (2016-17: Nil).

Note 14 – Financial Assets
2018

2017

$

$

26,819,538

24,097,822

679,758

803,183

Current
Held-to-maturity financial assets, at amortised cost:
Term Deposits

Non Current
Available-for-sale financial assets, at fair value:
Fixed interest corporate debt
Australian equity funds

7,532,249

6,505,591

International equity funds

3,685,427

2,500,632

11,897,433

9,809,406

Total

Refer Note 20 for Accounting Policy on recognition of financial assets.
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Note 15 – Investment Properties

Investment Properties, at fair value

2018

2017

$

$

3,750,000

3,535,000

Accounting Policy
The Foundation was gifted eleven properties through a bequest. The properties have been recognised at market value upon
receipt and will be accounted for using the fair value as at each reporting date.
Independent specific appraisals of the Foundation's investment properties were most recently performed as at 4 June 2018 by
Herron Todd White using fair value principles. The fair value of the investment properties was based on publicly available data
on sales of similar properties in nearby localities within the twelve months prior to the date of the revaluation. In determining
the values, adjustments were made to the sales data to take into account the location of the property, land size, the age of the
house/unit, internal features/design and physical condition of each house/unit being valued.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of investment property are included in the operating result for the period in
which they arise.

Note 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation Expense
2018

2017

$

$

47,503

47,503

(43,066)

(38,420)

4,437

9,083

Computer equipment
At cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Furniture & fittings
At cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

40,261

40,261

(40,261)

(39,698)

-

563

1,740,016

1,764,171

(1,649,657)

(1,371,165)

90,358

393,006

94,795

402,652

TV operations equipment
At cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total
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Note 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation Expense cont.
Property, Plant and Equipment Reconciliation

Carrying Amount at 1 July 2017

Furniture &
Fittings

Computer
Equipment

TV Ops
Equipment

Total

$

$

$

$

563

9,083

393,006

402,652

Acquisitions

-

-

-

0

Depreciation

(563)

(4,646)

(302,332)

(307,541)

-

-

(316)

(316)

Disposals

Carrying Amount at 30 June 2018

-

4,437

90,358

94,795

There was no impairment loss recorded on property, plant and equipment in 2017-18. The useful life of each asset has been
reviewed at year end and no adjustment is deemed necessary.

Accounting Policy
Asset Acquisition
Actual cost is used for the initial recording of all non-current physical asset acquisitions. Cost is determined as the value given
as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including all other costs incurred in getting the assets ready for use.
However, any training costs are expensed as incurred.
Where assets are received free of charge from another Queensland public sector entity (usually via an involuntary transfer),
the acquisition cost is recognised as the gross carrying amount in the books of the transferor immediately prior to the transfer
together with any accumulated depreciation.
Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, other than from an involuntary transfer from another Queensland
government agency, are recognised at their fair value at date of acquisition in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and
Equipment.
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense.

Recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other value equal to or in excess of the following thresholds are
recognised for financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition:

Plant and Equipment

$5,000

Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition unless they form a network of assets. Expenditure is only
capitalised if it increases the service potential or useful life of the existing asset. Maintenance expenditure that merely restores
original service potential (arising from ordinary wear and tear etc.) is expensed.
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Note 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation Expense cont.
Impairment
All non-current physical and intangible assets are assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. If an indicator of
possible impairment exists, the Foundation determines the asset's recoverable amount. The asset's recoverable amount is
determined as the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. Any amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income.

Depreciation
Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis so as to allocate the net cost or revalued amount of each asset,
less its estimated residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the Foundation.
The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on historical experience with similar assets as well as considerations
such as manufacturers' warranties, asset turnover practices and the Foundation's strategic asset plan. Reassessments of
useful lives are undertaken annually by the Foundation. Any consequential adjustments to remaining useful life estimates are
implemented prospectively. No such adjustments were made in the current year.
Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new
depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to the Foundation.
For each class of depreciable asset the following depreciation and amortisation rates are used:
Class

Rate %

Plant and equipment:
Furniture & fittings
Computer equipment
TV operations equipment

20
33.33
12.5 - 33.33
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Note 17 – Payables
2018

2017

$

$

1,278,911

1,682,777

242,691

158,706

Research grants payable

1,672,385

1,341,156

Total

3,193,988

3,182,639

Accounts Payable
Accruals

Accounting Policy
Accounts payable represent trade creditors that are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are
measured at the agreed purchase/contract price, gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured
and are generally settled on 30 day terms. Research grants are recognised as being payable upon acceptance from the grant
recipient of the grant terms and conditions.

Note 18 – Accrued Employee Benefits
2018

2017

$

$

Wage and Bonus accrual

151,965

152,588

Annual leave payable

186,677

135,525

44,885

47,344

383,527

335,457

Long service leave payable

58,798

46,314

Total

58,798

46,314

Current

Long service leave payable
Total

Non-Current

Refer Note 8 for Accounting Policy

Note 19 – Information on Fair Value Measurement
The carrying amounts of trade receivables and payable approximate their fair value.
Investment properties measured at fair value are revalued on an annual basis either by appraisals undertaken by an
independent professional valuer or internal expert. For financial reporting purposes, the revaluation process is managed by
the Foundation’s Finance Division, who determines the specific revaluation practices and procedures. The Finance Division
undertakes annual reviews of the revaluation practices (after each year’s revaluation exercise), and reports to the
Foundation’s Audit, Finance and Risk Committee regarding the outcomes of, and recommendations arising from, each annual
review.

The fair values reported by the Foundation are based on appropriate valuation techniques that maximise the use of available
and relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.
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Note 20 – Financial Instruments
Classification
The Foundation classifies and measures its financial assets in the following categories:


Receivables - held at amortised cost



Held to maturity investments - held at amortised cost



Available-for-sale financial assets – held at fair value through profit and loss



Payables - held at amortised cost

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition and, in the case of assets classified as held-to-maturity, re-evaluates this
designation at the end of each reporting date.

(i) Receivables
Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets (Receivables) - refer note 13.

(ii) Held‐to‐maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Foundation’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity financial assets are
included in non-current assets, except for those with maturities less than 12 months from the end of the reporting period,
which are classified as current assets. The held-to-maturity financial assets are term deposits held with financial institutions
with an original maturity date of greater than three months.

(iii) Available‐for‐sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally marketable equity securities, are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non‐current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
Investments are designated as available-for-sale if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable payments and
management intends to hold them for the medium to long term.

The Foundation’s investment in equity securities and managed funds are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
These investments are managed by JBWere Pty Ltd and the performance of such is monitored by the Foundation’s Audit,
Finance and Risk Committee which meets at least bi-monthly.

Recognition and Derecognition
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade‐date – the date on which the Foundation commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit and loss as gains and losses from investment securities.
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Note 20 – Financial Instruments cont.
Measurement
At initial recognition, the Foundation measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Receivables and held‐to‐maturity investments are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Available‐for‐sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are
presented in profit or loss within other income or other expenses in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss as part of revenue from continuing operations
when the Foundation’s right to receive payments is established. Interest income from these financial assets is included in the
net gains/(losses).

Impairment
The Foundation assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator
that the assets are impaired.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Note 21 – Key Management Personnel (KMP) Disclosure
Details of Key Executive Management Personnel

The following details for key executive management personnel include those positions that had authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Foundation during 2017-18. Further information on these positions can
be found in the body of the Annual Report under the section relating to Executive Management.

Position

Position Responsibility

Board of the Foundation

The strategic leadership, guidance and effective oversight of the management of the Foundation,
including its operational and financial performance.

Chief Executive Officer

Responsible for the strategic leadership, direction and effective financial administration of the
Foundation.
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Note 21 – Key Management Personnel (KMP) Disclosure Continued
KMP Remuneration Policies

The remuneration policy for the Foundation's key executive management personnel is set by the Chairman of the Board within
their authority under the Hospital Foundations Act 1982. The RBWH Foundation Board members receive no remuneration to
hold their position on the Board. The remuneration and other terms of employment for the Chief Executive Officer is specified
in their employment contract. The contract provides for the provision of performance-related cash bonuses.

The remuneration package for Chief Executive Officer comprises the following components:* Short term employee benefits which include:
salaries and allowances earned and expensed for the entire year, or for that part of the year during which the employee
occupied the specific position.
-

performance payments recognised as an expense during the year.

-

annual leave entitlements earned and expensed for the entire year.

* Long term employee expenses – long service leave entitlements earned and expensed for the entire year, or for that part of
the year during which the employee occupied the specified position.
* Post employment benefits include superannuation contributions.

Remuneration Expenses
1 July 2017 - 30 June 2018

Position

Chief Executive Officer

Short Term Employee
Benefits

Post Employment
Benefits

Long Term
Employee
Benefits

Total Remuneration

Monetary
Expenses

NonMonetary
Expenses

$'000

$’000

$'000

$'000

$'000

221.4

-

19.6

-

241

Post Employment
Benefits

Long Term
Employee
Benefits

Total Remuneration

1 July 2016 - 30 June 2017

Position

Chief Executive Officer

Short Term Employee
Benefits
Monetary
Expenses

NonMonetary
Expenses

$'000

$’000

$'000

$'000

$'000

220.8

-

19.3

-

240.2
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Note 21 – Key Management Personnel (KMP) Disclosure Continued
Performance Payments

Performance bonuses may be paid or payable annually depending upon satisfaction of key criteria. Performance payments of
the key executive management are capped at 5% of total fixed remuneration. The amounts payable are tied to the
achievement of pre-determined Foundation and individual performance targets as agreed by the Board.

The basis for performance bonuses paid or payable in the 2017-18 financial year is set out below:

Position

Date Paid & Amount
28-Aug-18

Chief Executive Officer

$9,193

Basis for payment

The cash performance bonus was calculated by reference to the
incentive scheme approved by the Board at the August 2017
meeting. The bonus paid equated to $9,193 being 4.25% of total
fixed remuneration as compared to the maximum bonus achievable
of $10,816 being 5% of the total fixed remuneration payable.

The basis for performance bonuses paid or payable in the 2016-17 financial year is set out below:

Position

Date Paid & Amount
31-Jul-17

Chief Executive Officer

$9,534

Basis for payment

The cash performance bonus was calculated by reference to the
incentive scheme approved by the Board at the August 2016
meeting. The bonus paid equated to $9,534 being 4.5% of total
fixed remuneration as compared to the maximum bonus achievable
of $10,593 being 5% of the total fixed remuneration payable.

Note 22 – Related Party Transactions
The RBWH Foundation obtained related party declarations for each member of the board and key executive personnel for the
period 1 July 2017 – 30 June 2018. No related party transactions requiring disclosure under AASB 124 Related Party
Disclosures were required. The RBWH Foundation Board members receive no remuneration to hold their position on the
Board.
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Note 23 – Commitments
(a) Cancellable Operating Lease
Commitments under operating leases at reporting date are inclusive of anticipated GST and are payable as follows:

2018

2017

$

$

Not later than one year

27,270

27,270

Total

27,270

27,270

Operating Lease represents a 75 year lease of half a floor in the Bancroft Centre of the Queensland Institute of Medical
Research (QIMR) which requires two months notice in writing to terminate. The Foundation currently leases out this space for
the use of researchers.
(b) Directed Funds Commitment
$16,655,121 (2017: $14,574,076) of equity is held for a variety of special purpose funds which are earmarked to support
numerous medical research projects and other initiatives. There is a large flow through of these funds as money is used for
its intended purposes and replaced by further fundraising income.

Note 24 – Contingencies
Butterfield Street car park
During the 1997-98 financial year, Royal Brisbane Hospital Research Foundation entered into an agreement with Queensland
Health to receive a fixed share of the car park income from the Butterfield Street car park. The agreement is for a period of 20
years and expires on 11 January 2018. This agreement was extended to 11 September 2023 on 23 March 2016. The
Butterfield Street car park was set up under a BOOT arrangement (Build, Own, Operate and Transfer) with the International
Parking Group Pty Ltd.

In 1998, as part of the arrangement, Royal Brisbane Hospital Foundation received an upfront payment of $2,425,511 (the
initial rent). Under the Deed of Assignment dated 30 June 2000, the Foundation has agreed to the proportional refund of this
initial rent in the event of the early termination of the lease.

As at 30 June 2018 the unexpired portion of this amount totalled nil (2017: $60,644 ).
Rental income from the Butterfield Street car park totalled $1,810,326 for the year (2017: $1,661,234).

The members of the Board are of the opinion that provisions are not required in respect of this matters, as it is not probable
that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required or the amount is not capable of reliable measurement.

Note 25 – Events Occurring After Balance Date
No events occurred subsequent to balance date that would require adjustment for our disclosure in the financial statements.
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